
Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors Agenda 
City of North Plains 

NORTH PLAINS SENIOR CENTER 
31450 NW Commercial 
Monday, June 1, 2015 

8:00 P.M. 
Special Session 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 

 
 A.  Approval of Special Session agenda 
 

B.  Approval of minutes of 04/06/15 Special Session URA Board of Directors 
 

4.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 
may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder.  
You are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, 
only your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.)   

 
5. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 

6. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Discussion of options for Vanderzanden Property at 30933 NW Commercial 

Street 
B. Discuss of funding options for City Council goals 

 
7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 

***** 
North Plains Urban Renewal Agency meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  
The Agency will also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or 
vision and other services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To 
obtain services, please call City Hall at (503) 647-5555. 

***** 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 162



April 6, 2015 Urban Renewal Agency Minutes 
Page 1 of 2 

 

City of North Plains 
Urban Renewal Agency (URA) Board of Directors 

Monday, April 6, 2015, Special Session 
MINUTES 

 
 
1. Call to Order:  Chair Lenahan called the meeting to order at 10:49 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: 

Directors present: 
Chair Teri Lenahan, Directors: David Hatcher, Sherrie Simmons, Sandi King, 
Scott Whitehead, and Robert Kindel, Jr. 
 
Absent: Charlynn Newton 
 
Staff present:  City Manager Martha DeBry, City Recorder Margaret Reh 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
A.  Regular Session Agenda Approval 
B. Approval of minutes of 06/02/15 Special Session URA Board of Directors 

 
Motion by Hatcher. Seconded by Simmons to approve the Consent Agenda.  The 
motion was approved unanimously. 
 
4.  ELECTION OF URA CHAIRPERSON FOR 2015 

A. Election of Chairperson for Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors 
 

Chair Lenahan invited nominations for 2015 URA Chairperson. Motion by Lenahan to 
nominate Kindel for the URA Chair. Second by Simmons. The motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 None were forthcoming 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Discussion of downtown entry at the intersection of Commercial Street and 

Glencoe Road and Gordon Road 
 
DeBry presented the staff report. Staff is seeking direction from the URA Board 
regarding the budget for design and installation of permanent directional signage for 
downtown area. The city received a report from the North Plains Chamber of Commerce 
regarding signage to direct people into the city center. Discussion ensued. The 
estimated cost for the signs the Chamber suggested would be around $2000 for the 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 162



April 6, 2015 Urban Renewal Agency Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

 

signs themselves and $1500 for installation. This project will need to be coordinated 
between the City of North Plains, Washington County, and ODOT.  
 
Staff is also seeking direction regarding the improvements to the corners of Glencoe 
Road and Commercial Street. RFPs could be sought for the project or staff could 
pursue the task.  URA funds could be allocated this fiscal year or next as the URA has 
the budget to invest in this project. The North Plains Chamber of Commerce would like 
the City to move forward with the process? The City is already under contract with 
Woofter Architecture for the Jessie Mays remodel project, so there is a possibility of 
consulting with them for the design of these four corners. Discussion ensued. 
 
The consensus of the URA Board is for staff to first consult with Woofter Architecture 
and report back to the Board. 
 
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
Kindel asked for clarification if the Sunset Ridge Development is included in the URA 
district. It is not. 
 
The Board inquired of the whereabouts of the old “Welcome to the City of North Plains” 
sign that was out on Highway 26 before the construction of the new interchange. Public 
Works is in possession of the sign. Discussion ensued.  
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Kindel adjourned the meeting at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 
________________________________ 
Robert Kindel, Jr., URA Chairperson 
 
 
_________________________________ Date approved ____________________  
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 162



 

Agenda Item No: 6A    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  June 1, 2015 

To:  Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors 

From:  Interim City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: Options for Vanderzanden Property at 30933 NW Commercial Street 
 

 
Request:  URA Directors to discuss needs of Agency and the possibility to purchase a 
parcel of land in the best interest of the URA. 
 
Background: The property in question (Tax Lots 1N31DA 3101 & 3102) was once 
zoned commercial but changed some years back to R2.5.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  To be determined by URA if interested in lot. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation:  For URA to decide agency needs for area in question. 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 162



1 | P a g e  

 

 
      

 

STAFF REPORT 
  
Date:  April 22, 2014 
 
To:  Planning Commission 
 
From:  Martha DeBry, City Manager 
 
Subject:  Extension of Map Approval 
 

 

REQUEST: Extend the subdivision approval for SD, VAR 07-0002 
APPLICANT John Rankin, 26715 SW Baker Road, Sherwood Oregon 97140 
OWNER:  1997 Vanderzanden Trust  
TAX LOT ID  Tax Lot 1N301DA3101 1N301DA3101 
SIZE:   1.44 Acres   
LOCATION:  30933 NW Commercial Street 
LAND- USE DISTRICT:  R2.5 
 

 

General vicinity of lot.  
  
North side of Commercial Street between 
309th and 311th. 
 
No existing structures on site 

 
I. APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

 
A. City of North Plains Comprehensive Plan  
 
B. North Plains Zoning and Development Ordinance: 

Chapter 16.00: General Provisions 
 Chapter 16.135.020: Subdivision 
 Chapter 16.170: Application Requirements and Review Procedures 

 

Agenda Item No: 6A 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 162



2 | P a g e  

 

II. AFFECTED JURISDICTIONS 
 Domestic Water:  City of North Plains  
Drainage:   Clean Water Services  
Erosion Control:  Clean Water Services 
Fire Protection:  Washington County Fire District #2 
Parks:    City of North Plains 
Police Protection:  City of North Plains 
Schools:   Hillsboro School District 
Sewer:   Clean Water Services  
Streets:   City of North Plains 
Water Quality/Quantity: Clean Water Services 
 

III. BACKGROUND: 
 
The applicant is requesting an extension of an approval first granted in 2007.  Due to a downturn 
in the economy the project was delayed and five extensions were subsequently granted.  (2008, 
2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012). The current extension is due to expire in May 2014.  The applicant 
has requested the extension under 16.135.020 which provides the Commission with the 
authority to extend an approval if the delay is caused by circumstances out of the owner’s control.  
In this instance the applicant is stating the economic downturn remains a barrier to the 
development of attached townhomes. 
 
IV. FINDINGS 

 
A. NORTH PLAINS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
 
FINDING:  Except where required by the North Plains Zoning and Development 
Ordinance, this application is not required to address the city’s goals and policies related 
to the development of land, since the North Plains Comprehensive Plan is implemented 
by the municipal code.   
 
B. NORTH PLAINS ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
Below are applicable citations/applicable review criteria from the North Plains Zoning 
Ordinance and findings in response to the criteria. Unless discussed below, the 
applicant has met the requirements of the applicable review criteria fully, and/or the 
Code’s criteria are not applicable to this proposal and therefore do not warrant 
discussion. 

 
16.00.080  Termination of Approvals and Extensions 
 
16.00.080 Termination of Approvals and Extensions 
 
Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, approval of an application or permit is void 
after one year or such lesser time as the approval may specify unless substantial construction 
has taken place or the proposed use has occurred.  Approval of a subdivision or PUD is void 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 162



3 | P a g e  

 

after two years or such lesser time as the approval may specify unless substantial construction 
has taken place or the proposed use has occurred.   
 
The Planning Commission may grant two year extensions for subdivisions and PUDs and one 
year extensions for all other applications.  The Planning Commission may also grant two-year 
extensions of a PUD, land partition or subdivision approval that expired between January 1, 
2008 and January 1, 2013. Extensions may be granted administratively if the original approval 
was made administratively. The request for an extension must be filed with the City on or 
before the expiration date.  

 
The applicant is responsible for requesting an extension.  An extension is a discretionary 
decision and is not granted automatically. The following criteria must be satisfied in order for 
the City to approve an extension:  

 
A. The City determines just cause for the delay and the reason for the delay is 

outside the control of the applicant. 

B. No significant changes to the applicable standards of this Ordinance or the 
applicable regulations of other affected jurisdictions (Clean Water Services, 
Washington County, Washington County Fire District, etc) have been made. Any 
extension requests shall be referred to affected city departments or other 
governmental jurisdictions for comment. 

C. No significant changes have been made to properties within 250 feet of the 
exterior boundaries of the subject property. 

Previously the City has recognized the economic downturn as a valid reason for extending an 
approval.  With the application, the applicant did not provide any hard evidence that the “market 
for attached 
townhouse 
residential 
developments 
is still 
presently very 
difficult and 
sales of such 
developments 
are very few.”  
At this time 
there are no 
townhomes for 
sale in North 
Plains.  Sales 
of attached 
single family 
homes has 
been 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 162



4 | P a g e  

 

successful in North Plains, as demonstrated by the completion of Cottage Pointe.  There are 
approximately 23 townhomes for sale in the North Plains area (from Cornell east to Forest 
Grove) according to Zillow on 4/22/14.  There is wide availability of condominiums in the area, 
which would suggest that attached housing is not scarce but also not readily available within a 
couple miles of North Plains.  The Sunset Ridge development in the eastern part of the City 
includes townhouse units and is expected to break ground this year.  Credit markets have 
improved in recent years, however funding may still be difficult for this kind of standalone project.  
The applicant was asked to provide additional information about the application, which is 
included as Attachment A of this report. 
 
There has been no additional construction in the past two years in the immediate area of the 
property.  One minor partition was approved on Commercial Street.  
 
Finding:  The economy is still recovering from the effects of the great recession.   
 
Finding:  There have been no substantial changes in the standards of the Municipal code or 
regulations of other affected jurisdictions. 
 
Finding:  There have been no significant changes to properties within 250 feet of the project.  
 

Chapter 16.135 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES 
 
16.135.020 Expiration of Tentative Approval 
 
Approval of the tentative plan shall become null and void if a final plat in accordance with these 
regulations is not submitted within one year after the date of the approval of the tentative plan.   
If the subdivider cannot complete the preparation of the final plat within the one year time 
period, he may petition the commission an extension of the subdivision approval in accordance 
with the provisions of Section 16.00.080 
 
Finding:  The Planning Commission has authority to extend the approval of the map.  
 

Chapter 16.170 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES 
 
16.170.000 General Provisions 
 
The following lists set forth the type of review procedure for administrative and land use 
applications: 
 

C. Type III Quasi-Judicial Permits by Planning Commission 
 

4. Extensions for Type II and Type III permits 

Finding:  The application for the approval extension is subject to a Type III review before the 
Planning Commission. 
 
16.170.012 Type III Quasi-Judicial Decisions by the Planning Decision 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 162



5 | P a g e  

 

 
Pre-application Conference. A pre-application conference is required for all Type III quasi-
judicial applications under this Section. The City Manager may waive this requirement. 
 
A. The requirements and procedures for a pre-application conference are described in 

Chapter 16.170.001. 
 
Finding:  The City Manager waived the requirement for a preapplication conference. 

 
B. Application Requirements. 

 
Finding:  the applicant met application requirements. 
 
C. Notice of Hearing. 

 
1. Mailed notice. The City shall mail the notice of the Type III application. The records 

of the Washington County Assessor’s Office are the official records for determining 
ownership. Notice of the initial hearing or an appeal hearing shall be given by the 
City in the following manner: 
 
a. At least 20 days before the hearing date, notice shall be mailed…: 

 
b. Content of Notice. Notice of appeal of an application or notice of a public hearing 

to be mailed and published per Subsection 1 above shall contain the following 
information… 

 
Finding:  Notices were mailed in accordance with code requirements to property owners within 
250 feet. 
 
V. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSIONS 
 
Based upon the findings of this report and the submitted material, the applicant has 
demonstrated compliance with the requirements of the relevant sections of the North Plains 
Zoning and Development Ordinance for the requested approval.  The Planning Commission can 
make a discretional decision to extend the approval if it finds the information in the application 
is adequate to merit an extension.   
 
  

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 162



6 | P a g e  

 

Attachment A  
Letter from John Rankin Regarding Economic Conditions: 
 
Hi Martha: 
  
Following up on our phone conversation today, I will plan on attending the Planning 
Commission Meeting at 7:00 pm on May 14th at the Senior Center and will be available to 
answer any questions or concerns. 
  
Please kindly place this email and the following in your staff report for consideration by the 
Planning Commission.  
  
Regarding additional information on the reasons why we have not been successful in 
marketing the 15-unit Townhome project to date and need the extension: 
  

1. At the time we received preliminary approval the market for townhomes was strong 
and lenders were providing attractive terms for construction and take-out financing on 
townhomes. 

2. We received approval just as the real estate market in general was collapsing.  
3. Since receiving approval, we have been target marketing the property to 

developer/builders over the last many years with increased focus just this last year as 
the overall market began to appear to recover enough that a townhome project might 
be attractive again.  

4. But townhome projects continue to be more difficult to market even in the recent 
improving real estate market, because: 
a. Construction and take-out lenders are very few or non-existent who are even 

interested in single family attached housing and if they are their terms are not 
attractive. 

b. I understand that Wells Fargo is the only lender who might do a take-out loan 
on townhome project which has been constructed using construction financing 
by others.  

c. We have no meaningful sales data on townhomes because very few have 
been constructed and sold in Washington County in recent years comparable 
to this project. 

d. When they do sell in the current market, townhomes usually now sell for about 
15% less per square foot than single family detached homes. 

e. The current demographic for townhome buyers is very limited now and is 
predominantly divorced single females. 

f. The developer must create and prefund and stay in the homeowners 
association, and HOA’s have fallen out of favor in the market place themselves 
with the market collapse and resulting HOA litigation.  

5. Please note that this 15-unit project is a small project which is not part of a larger 
project single family detached housing project such as was recently approved by the 
City for Polygon NW. Only a very limited number of builders are interested in 
townhomes at this time and those few developers who build townhomes build them 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 162



7 | P a g e  

 

as the last units built after their single family detached homes.  I have left a voice 
message for Fred Gast of Polygon to get additional information.  

6.      None of the problems now associated with townhomes existed when we obtained the 
original approval and the City liked (and I understand still likes) the idea of 
owner/occupied small lot detached and townhome density, instead of apartments.  

7.      To broaden the marketing effort, we placed a “for sale” sign on the property nearly 
one year, and received a flurry of calls from potential buyers from Habitat for 
Humanity to out of town developer/builders – none of whom have made an offer. 
Most were looking to make a purchase at the very depressed previous market prices.  

8.      Our target marketing has produced one letter of intent from a local Metro 
developer/builder for a purchase price of approximately two-thirds of what we and the 
owners think the reasonable market should be right now for townhomes. DR Horton, 
Lennar and Arbor/West Hills are still not interested in attached housing with Arbor 
moving solidly into the apartment market.  

9.      The current market continues to gradually improve (although the lenders are still not 
funding townhomes) and we are finally getting some traction with our target 
marketing effort, but we need more time to market the property and consider other 
options for the property.  

10. We expect a reasonable price offer before the end of this year assuming the market 
continues to improve, and request the additional two year extension which we expect 
to be the last needed for this project. 

 
I will provide more information and be available to answer questions at the PC meeting. If you 
have any questions or comments, please email or call me. Thanks for your help. All the best!  
John  
John A. Rankin, LLC.  
26715 SW Baker Road  
Sherwood, Oregon 97140  
Voice: 503-625-9710/Fax: 503-625-9709  
Email: john@johnrankin.com  
**************************************************************************** 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 162

https://webmail.ci.hillsboro.or.us/owa/redir.aspx?C=Gn0XaKcqyU6wK1VGUMSdY0AB0CYMPNFIQrvKNFZ2GgiItxzjROxyIkgegXGZSLV4cE0SDa0nvqQ.&URL=mailto%3ajohn%40johnrankin.com


___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 85 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 86 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 87 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 88 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 89 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 90 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 91 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 92 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 93 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 94 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 95 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 96 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 97 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 98 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 99 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 100 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 101 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 102 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 103 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 104 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 105 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 106 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 107 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 108 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 109 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 110 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 111 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 112 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 113 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 114 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 115 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 116 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 117 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 118 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 119 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 120 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 121 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 122 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 123 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 124 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 125 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 126 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 127 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 128 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 129 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 130 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 131 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 132 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 133 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 134 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 135 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 136 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 137 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 138 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 139 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 140 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 141 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 142 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 143 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 144 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 145 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 146 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 147 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 148 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 149 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 150 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 151 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 152 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 153 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 154 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 155 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 156 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 157 of 162



___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 158 of 162



 

URA Agenda Item No: 6B    

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  May 27, 2015 

To:  Urban Renewal Agency Board of Directors 

From:  City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: URA Funding options for City Council Goals 

 
Request:  The URA will talk about the Council goals that were discussed at the May 18, 
2015 City Council meeting and will investigate various funding options. 
 
Council decided that the top priority for a goal is to move forward with the directional signage 
in town and develop the corners of the intersection at Glencoe/Commercial to direct traffic to 
downtown. Boyles met with Woofter to get a scope of work that would include surveying, 
design, and creating a set of plans. The URA is also being asked to look into funding signage 
at the intersection of West Union Road and Jackson School Road indicating the city limits of 
North Plains.  
 
A second goal of the Council is to improve the appearance of the downtown area. Boyles has 
been in contact with Van Dykes regarding possible improvement of the appearance of the 
corrugated tin buildings with the painting of murals. A theme will need to be decided upon. 
The Council wanted this item to be submitted to the URA Board for possible funding. A 
possibility of installing sidewalks along the north side of Commercial in front of the tin 
buildings was also discussed. 
 
The Van Dyke building improvement project could lead to the Sidewalk Creation Program. 
This would require the Council to identify the neighborhoods that have a high need for 
sidewalks and develop plan for implementation. This may be something the URA Board may 
be able to assist in funding. 
 
Façade improvement program for businesses to encourage revitalization was determined to 
be a priority Council goal. This was another project that the URA Board may be able to assist 
in funding or could sponsor a matching grant program.  
 
Creating the downtown parking lot on the corner of Kaybern and Main Street was also 
included in the Council goals. The City will lose the small amount of revenue from the renting 
of the area when this is converted into a parking lot. If surfaced a good deal of square 
footage will be lost due to CWS requirements. But a gravel parking lot could be created for a 
quicker fix the area and would allow for more parking. 
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item. 
 
Recommendation: This item is informational only at this time. 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 159 of 162



 

Agenda Item No: 9H     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  April 1, 2014 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Martha DeBry 

Subject: Discussion of Kaybern Street lot 

Request:  Council discuss options for the Kaybern Street lot. 
 
Background:   At the March 17, 2014 City Council meeting North Plains Chamber of 
Commerce Secretary Cindy Hirst asked Council to consider its plans for the lot, as it 
was originally purchased to serve as a parking lot for the downtown area.  
 
The City through its Urban Renewal Agency owns two parcels at Kaybern and Main 
Street which total 12,825 square feet.  The lot can accommodate about 25-30 vehicles, 
assuming drivers park in close proximity to each other along the edges and in a row in 
the middle.  (From the north fence to south fence is approximately 78 linear feet.  From 
the building to the City’s property line is approximately 110 feet.)  A few additional 
spaces can be made if the 35 x 45 foot building is removed.  
 

 
The area outlined in red is the lot and the blue represents existing fencing.  The lot to 
the right of the City’s lot is owned by Michael Basile, who also owns the Rogue Brew 
Pub at 31500 NW Commercial Street.   
 
Since it was acquired, the property has been leased to landscaping firms to serve as a 
corporation yard where equipment, materials and vehicles are stored.  The tenant 
currently leases the space on a month-to-month basis and pays $600/month for the use 
of the facility.  The agreement the City has with the tenant allows the City to terminate 
the agreement with 30 day notice.  As a practical matter the City should provide as 

URA Agenda Item No: 6B 

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 160 of 162



much notice as possible if the agreement is to change, so that the tenant can find a new 
place of business.  
 
Staff has evaluated the property to determine how its use can be changed into a parking 
lot.   
 
Surface – The surface currently consists of unimproved ground.  It is adequate as a 
driving surface.  An unimproved lot is prone to becoming muddy in the event of rain, 
which may limit its utility periodically.  One way to keep the surface useful in rain is to 
add 1-3 inches of rock, which would cost less than $2,000.  Puddles will still occur, but 
mud will be less problematic.   
 
An improved asphaltic surface would require engineering, and would cost around 
$2/square foot for materials.  Curbing, drainage swales, lighting and other 
improvements, would increase the cost into the range of $70,000-$120,000. 
 

Access – At present the driveway to 
the lot is near the southern portion of 
the Last Waterin’ Hole. This driveway 
is also used by the North Plains 
Market, creating a thru lot for parking.  
A gate used by the tenant could be 
opened/removed to make access 
more simple.  
 
A secondary access could be 
created from Kaybern Street.  Some 
minor improvements would be 
needed as the existing drainage pipe 
is inadequate to support the weight 
of heavy vehicle.  
 
Screening - Along the western part 
of the lot, where a substantial 
amount of plant screening is in place 
between the building and Main 
Street. No screening is present on 
the other fences. 
 
Building – An existing building on 
the site provides a storage area for 
the current tenant. It likely has 
electricity, but it does not have water 
or sewer connections.   The City 
could remove it to create more 

space for parking or it could leave the building in place, and use it as a storage place for 
barricades, tables, etc for events like the Fourth of July, Garlic Festival and Farmers’ 
Market.  ___________________________________________________________ 

NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 
Monday, June 1, 2015 

Packet Pagination: Page 161 of 162



 
Fencing – Currently there is fencing on most but not all sides of the lot.   Generally the 
fencing is fair condition.  There is no fencing between the lot and the buildings occupied 
by the Market, Antiques Mall or Rogue.  A fence is in place between the Basile property 
and the Senior Plaza.  
 
Staff was in the process of reaching out to business and property owners in the area at 
the time this report was written.  Additional verbal information will be available at the 
Council meeting. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  If council wants to move forward with changing the use of the lot the 
lease would need to be terminated, which would reduce the Urban Renewal Agency 
income by $6,000 per year.  Improvements made to the lot would be expenses of the 
Urban Renewal Agency.  No project has been designated or approved at this time, 
however funding can be made available for this purpose.  
 
Environmental Issues:  No environmental issues are associated with this item if no 
improvements are made.  If an asphaltic surface is added the project would need to be 
engineered to manage storm water run-off, which may require swale improvements.  
 
Recommendation:  Council discuss if it would like to change the use of the Kaybern 
Street lot to a parking lot and when that should occur.  

___________________________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (URA) AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, June 1, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 162 of 162


	3A 060115 URA Agenda
	3B 040615 URA Minutes
	6A Memo Rankin Vanderzanden Property Discussion
	6A2 PC staff report 30933 commercial Rankin Vanderzanden
	6A3 Full page photo Vanderzander property
	6A4 Rankin & Vanderzanden property appraisal and offer to the City
	6A5 15 unit townhome plan
	6A6 North Plains Condos-Perspective
	6B Memo URA funding for goals
	6B URA Kaybern Street Property Options



